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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT sgp 28 20V
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
JACKSONVILLE DIVISION 4. 5. DISTRICT, COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
V. CASE NO. 3! [}(e-84L] - 3U TEM

Cts. 1-7 18 U.S.C. § 2251(a)
DOYCE DEAN GRIFFIS Cts. 889 18 U.S.C. § 2252(a)(2)

Ct. 10 18 U.S.C. § 2252(a)(4)(B)

Forfeitures: 18 U.S.C. § 2253

INDICTMENT
The Grand Jury charges:

COUNTS ONE THROUGH SEVEN

1. Beginning in or about February 2000, and continuing until on or
about April 26, 2011, at Starke, in Bradford County, in the Middle District of Florida,
defendant, DOYCE DEAN GRIFFIS, operated and maintained a tanning bed in an
outbuilding at his residence located at 2261 S.E. 128th Street, Starke, Florida 32091.
This tanning bed was maintained by GRIFFIS inside this outbuilding separate from
GRIFFIS's main residence.

2. Atall times relevant to this indictment, GRIFFIS engaged in a
business operation in m;hich he allowed individual customers to use the tanning bed in
the outbuilding in exchange for a monetary fee. GRIFFIS allowed customers to make
payments by placing money in a payment slot in the wall of the room of the outbuilding
housing the tanning bed. GRIFFIS allowed entry into the outbuilding housing the
tanning bed by providing customers with a entry code to unlock the door. GRIFFIS

provided specific written instructions to customers on payment options for tanning
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services. For example, a single visit, referred to by GRIFFIS as "Pay as you lay," cost
customers $2.50. GRIFFIS would also allow customers to prepay for 5 visits for a total
of $10, or for 10 visits for a total of $20, or for a flat $30 fee per month.

3. GRIFFIS's customers believed that the room in the outbuilding that
contained the tanning bed was secure, and that their privacy would be protected.
However, unbeknownst to his customers, the outbuilding room containing the tanning
bed had been equipped by GRIFFIS with a two-way mirror that allowed GRIFFIS to
view the room from a second concealed room. GRIFFIS also made a hole in an air
vent near the foot of the tanning bed that also allowed for viewing of the customers as
they lay inside the tanning bed. Using the two-way mirror and the hole in the air vent,
GRIFFIS surreptitiously made video recordings of many of his customers as they
undressed, entered and exited from tanning bed.

4, GRIFFIS selected which customers to film based upon physical
and sexual characteristics that he found desirable, and chose not to film customers
whom GRIFFIS found to be unattractive. Specifically, GRIFFIS personally operated a
video camera and filmed unsuspecting customers through both the two-way mirror and
the hole in the air vent in the tanning bed room. By filming through the air vent hole,
GRIFFIS was able to view into the tanning bed from its foot and capture graphic, close-
up video recordings of the genitalia and pubic areas of his customers while they lay in
the tanning bed.

5. During the period from in or about February 2000 through on or
about April 26, 2011, GRIFFIS made surreptitious video recordings of dozens of female
customers, including over 20 minor children. These recordings depicted the customers

2
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in various state of undress, completely nude, and/or engaging in sexually explicit
conduct, including sexual intercourse, oral sex, masturbation, and the lascivious
exhibition of their genitalia.

6. GRIFFIS produced, collected, and maintained the sexually explicit
video recordings of his victim customers for his own sexual gratification, and kept

detailed notes on the types of physical and sexual characteristics of his customers.

COUNT ONE

7. Paragraphs 1 through 6 of this indictment are hereby realleged and
incorporated by reference herein.

8. On or about August 12, 2002, at Starke, in Bradford County, in the
Middle District of Florida,

DOYCE DEAN GRIFFIS,

defendant herein, did knowingly employ, use, persuade, induce, entice and coerce E.
D., a minor, to engage in any sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing
visual depictions of such conduct, which visual depictions were produced using
materials that have been mailed, shipped or transported in or affecting interstate or
foreign commerce by any means.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2251(a) and (e).
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COUNT TWO

9. Paragraphs 1 through 6 of this indictment are hereby realleged and
incorporated by reference herein.

10.  From on or about May 16, 2002 through on or about June 7, 2002,
at Starke, in Bradford County, in the Middle District of Florida,

DOYCE DEAN GRIFFIS,

defendant herein, did knowingly employ, use, persuade, induce, entice and coerce D.
P., a minor, to engage in any sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing
visual depictions of such conduct, which visual depictions were produced using
materials that have been mailed, shipped or transported in or affecting interstate or
foreign commerce by any means.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2251(a) and (e).

COUNT THREE

11.  Paragraphs 1 through 6 of this indictment are hereby realleged and
incorporated by reference herein.

12.  On or about February 2, 2009, at Starke, in Bradford County, in the
Middle District of Florida,

DOYCE DEAN GRIFFIS,

defendant herein, did knowingly employ, use, persuade, induce, entice and coerce D.
F., a minor, to engage in any sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing

visual depictions of such conduct, which visual depictions were produced using
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materials that have been mailed, shipped or transported in or affecting interstate or
foreign commerce by any means.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2251(a) and (e).

COUNT FOUR

13.  Paragraphs 1 through 6 of this indictment are hereby realleged and
incorporated by reference herein.

14.  On or about April 5, 2009, at Starke, in Bradford County, in the
Middle District of Florida,

DOYCE DEAN GRIFFIS,

defendant herein, did knowingly employ, use, persuade, induce, entice and coerce M.
N., a minor, to engage in any sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing
visual depictions of such conduct, which visual depictions were produced using
materials that have been mailed, shipped or transported in or affecting interstate or
foreign commerce by any means.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2251(a) and (e).

COUNT FIVE
15.  Paragraphs 1 through 6 of this indictment are hereby realleged and

incorporated by reference herein.
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16.  On or about June 9, 2009, at Starke, in Bradford County, in the

Middle District of Florida,
DOYCE DEAN GRIFFIS,

defendant herein, did knowingly employ, use, persuade, induce, entice and coerce A.
N., a minor, to engage in any sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing
visual depictions of such conduct, which visual depictions were produced using
materials that have been mailed, shipped or transported in or affecting interstate or
foreign commerce by any means.

in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2251(a) and (e).

COUNT SIX

17.  Paragraphs 1 through 6 of this indictment are hereby realleged and
incorporated by reference herein.

18.  On or about February 28, 2011, at Starke, in Bradford County, in
the Middle District of Florida,

DOYCE DEAN GRIFFIS,

defendant herein, did knowingly employ, use, persuade, induce, entice and coerce K.
W., a minor, to engage in any sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing
visual depictions of such conduct, which visual depictions were produced using
materials that have been mailed, shipped or transported in or affecting interstate or

foreign commerce by any means.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2251(a) and (e).
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COUNT SEVEN

19.  Paragraphs 1 through 6 of this indictment are hereby realleged and
incorporated by reference herein.

20. On or about February 28, 2011, at Starke, in Bradford County, in
the Middle District of Florida,

DOYCE DEAN GRIFFIS,

defendant herein, did knowingly employ, use, persuade, induce, entice and coerce R.
G., a minor, to engage in any sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing
visual depictions of such conduct, which visual depictions were produced using
materials that have been mailed, shipped or transported in or affecting iﬁterstate or
foreign commerce by any means.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2251(a) and (e).

COUNT EIGHT
On or about April 4, 2009, at Starke, in Bradford County, in the
Middle District of Florida,
DOYCE DEAN GRIFFIS,

defendant herein, did knowingly receive a visual depiction using a means and facility of
interstate and foreign commerce, that is, by computer via the internet, the production of
which involved the use of minors engaging in sexually explicit conduct, which visual
depiction was of such conduct, and which visual depiction is specifically identified in the

computer file titled “Pedo-Vicky-The 107 Minutes Collection.mpeg.”
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In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2252(a)(2) and

2252(b)(1).

COUNT NINE

On or about March 2, 2010, at Starke, in Bradford County, in the

Middle District of Florida,
DOYCE DEAN GRIFFIS,

defendant herein, did knowingly receive a visual depiction using a means and facility of
interstate and foreign commerce, that is, by computer via the internet, the production of
which involved the use of minors engaging in sexually explicit conduct, which visual
depiction was of such conduct, and which visual depiction is specifically identified in the
computer file titled “Pedo-Katerina - 11Yo Girl From St Petersburg Russia Better To Eat
Avi (Pthc - Win Brother Sister - v2 - 10Yo Boy And 12Yo Girl.avi."”

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2252(a)(2) and
2252(b)(1).

COUNT TEN
On or about April 26, 2011, at Starke, in Bradford County, in the
Middle District of Florida,
DOYCE DEAN GRIFFIS,
defendant herein, did knowingly possess one (1) or more matters which contained

visual depictions which were produced using materials which have been shipped and
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transported in or affecting interstate and foreign commerce, that is, a Western Digital
computer hard disk drive, serial number WXCX07933459, the production of which
visual depictions involved the use of minors engaging in sexually explicit conduct and
which visual depictions were of such conduct, and which were specifically identified in
the following computer files, among others:

1. Pedo - hot spermed little girls mix.mpeg;

2. Pedo - Vicky blow job, masturbate, and fuck.mpeg; and

3. Pedo - Vicky in 69.mpeg.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2252(a)(4)(B) and

2252(b)(2).

FORFEITURES

1. The allegations contained in Counts One through Ten of this
Iindictment are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference for the purpose of
alleging forfeitures pursuant to the provision of Title 18, United States Code, Section
2253.

2. The defendant, DOYCE DEAN GRIFFIS, shall forfeit to the United
States of America, any visual depiction described in section 2251, 2251A, or 2252,
2252A, 22528, or 2260 of this chapter, or any book, magazine, periodical, film,
videotape, or other matter which contains any such visual depiction, which was
produced, transported, mailed, shipped or received in violation of this chapter; any
property, real or personal, constituting or traceable to gross profits or other proceeds

obtained from such offense; and any property, real or personal, used or intended to be
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used to commit or to promote the commission of offense, including but not limited to the

following:

ok
3.

omission of the defendant:
a.

b.

Real property located at 2261 SE 128th Street, Starke,
Florida 32091, including all improvements thereon and
appurtenances thereto, the legal description for which is as
follows:

West 1 - Acre being 137.00' East and West by 264.00' North
and South of the South 4 - Acre of NE 1/4 of SE 1/4 of NE
1/4 all lying and being in Section 10, Township 7 South,
Range 22 East, Bradford County, Florida,;

One Gateway computer, Model MX6425,

Serial Number T356131000123 containing one Western
Digitial computer hard disk drive WD1200BEVE, Serial
Number WXCX079334589;

One Sony video camera, Model DCR-SX41, Serial Number
1304222;

One Sharp 8 mm video camera, Model VL-AH150; and

Assorted video tapes, compact disks, digital video disks, and
other computer media.

If any of the property described above, as a result of any act or

cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third

party,
has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
has been substantially diminished in value; or

has been commingled with other property which cannot be
divided without difficulty,

10
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the United States of America shall be entitled to forfeiture of substitute property under

the provision of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2253(b).

A TRUE BILL,

ForepersQn

ROBERT E. O'NEILL
United States Attorney

By: DM%
D. ROPNEY BROWN
isfany/United States Attorney

By:

MAC D. HEAVENER, IlI
Assistant United States Attorney
Deputy Chief, Jacksonville Division
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